
 

 

 

 

 

 

       

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board Meeting 

March 10, 2022 

10:00 a.m. 



SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
 

 

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT)                                Tel: 808 798-0737 
No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Fifth Floor, Honolulu, HI  96813                  
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI  96804 
Email: dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov  
Website: sbrrb.hawaii.gov  

 
             

 
 

David Y. Ige 
Governor 

 
Mike McCartney 
DBEDT Director 

 
Members 

 

Robert Cundiff 
Chairperson 

O‘ahu 
 

Mary Albitz 
Vice Chairperson 

Maui 
 

Jonathan Shick 
2nd Vice Chairperson 

O‘ahu 
 

Dr. Nancy Atmospera-
Walch 
O‘ahu 

 
William Lydgate 

Kaua’i 
 

James (Kimo) Lee 
Hawai’i 

 
Garth Yamanaka 

           Hawai’i 
 

Taryn Rodighiero 
             Kaua’i 

 
Mark Ritchie for  
Director, DBEDT 
Voting Ex Officio 

 

          AGENDA   
 Thursday, March 10, 2022  10:00 a.m. 

Honolulu, HI  96813 
 

As authorized under Act 220, Session Laws of Hawaii 2021, Section 92-
3.7, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), and the Governor’s January 27, 2022 

Emergency Proclamation Related to COVID-19 (Omicron Variant), the 
meetings will be held remotely with Board Members, Staff, and Agencies 
participating via online meeting venue.  The public can participate in the 
meeting via video-audio livestream, or telephonically; to join the meeting 

go to: 
  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88945374966?pwd=cDhqWEEzZGZHYmJLM05tMHU5Mm5HQT09 
or  
 

Dial 1-669-900-6833 with Meeting ID 889 4537 4966 
  

When the Chairperson asks for public testimony during the meeting, you may 
indicate that you want to provide oral testimony by using the raise hand function 

or, if calling in by telephone, entering * and 9 on your phone keypad.  When 
recognized by the Chairperson, you will be unmuted.  If calling in by phone, you 

can unmute and mute yourself by pressing * and 6 on your keypad.  
 

Members of the public may submit written testimony via e-mail to: 
DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov or mailed to SBRRB, No. 1 Capitol 

District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Room 506A, Honolulu, HI  96813, or 
P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI 96804.  All written testimony should be 

received no later than 4:30 p.m., Wednesday, March 9, 2022.    
 

Copies of the Board Packet will be available on-line for review at: 
Agendas & Minutes – Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

(hawaii.gov). An electronic draft of the minutes for this meeting will also 
be made available at the same location when completed. 

 
The Board may go into Executive Session under  

Section 92-5 (a)(4), HRS to Consult with the Board’s Attorney on 
Questions and Issues Concerning the Board’s Powers, Duties, Immunities, 

Privileges and Liabilities. 
 

I. Call to Order 
  

II. Approval of February 17, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88945374966?pwd=cDhqWEEzZGZHYmJLM05tMHU5Mm5HQT09
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


Small Business Regulatory Review Board – March 10, 2022 
Page 2 

 
 

III. Old Business – After Public Hearing 
 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small 
Business Statement After Public Hearing for Hawaii Administrative 
Rules (HAR) Title 16 Chapter 73, Barbers, promulgated by 
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (DCCA) – Discussion 
Leader – Nancy Atmospera-Walch 
 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small 
Business Statement After Public Hearing for HAR Title 16 Chapter 78, 
Cosmetology, promulgated by DCCA – Discussion Leader – Nancy 
Atmospera-Walch 
 

IV. Administrative Matters 
 

A. Update on the Status of the Board’s Proposed Phase II Website Project 
 

B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs 
in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii 
Administrative Rules  

 
V. Legislative Matters 

 
A. Discussion and Action on Governor’s Message 726, Submitting for 

Consideration and Confirmation for the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Mr. Sanford Morioka to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
for a term to expire June 30, 2023 

 
VI. Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
VII. Adjournment 

 
If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to 

participate in the public hearing process, please call (808) 798-0737 or 
email dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov at least three (3) business days 

prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 
 
 
 

 

mailto:dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


     
 
II. Approval of February 17, 2022 Meeting 

Minutes 



 

      

 
    

 
    

  
 

         
     

                       
     
  

        

  

     
 

          
      

 
    

 
   

    
  

  
 

  
    

  
 

 
   

  
    

   

 
 

  
  
   
   
  
  
  
  

 

       
 

 
 

 
 
 

Approved: ______________________________ 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT 
February 17, 2022 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Cundiff called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m., with a 
quorum present, which was open to the public. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: ABSENT MEMBERS: 
 Robert Cundiff, Chair  Dr. Nancy Atmospera-
 Mary Albitz, Vice Chair Walch 
 Jonathan Shick, 2nd Vice Chair 
 Garth Yamanaka 
 William Lydgate 
 James (Kimo) Lee 
 Taryn Rodighiero 
 Mark Ritchie 

STAFF: DBEDT Office of the Attorney General 
Dori Palcovich Alison Kato 
Jet’aime Ariola 

II. APPROVAL OF January 20, 2022 MINUTES 

Vice Chair Albitz motioned to accept the January 20, 2022 meeting minutes, as presented. 
Second Vice Chair Shick seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

III. NEW BUSINESS – Before Public Hearing 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed New Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) to Title 
12 Chapter 43, Rules of Practice and Procedure Before the Hawaii Labor Relations 
Board, promulgated by Hawaii Labor Relations Board, Department of Labor and 
Industrial Relations (DLIR) 

Discussion leader and Vice Chair Albitz explained that the Hawaii Labor Relations Board 
(HLRB) is submitting proposed Chapter 43 which streamlines the practice and procedures 
that are currently in Chapters 41 and 42.  There does not appear to be anything that 
adversely impacts small business; in fact, small businesses will benefit from the procedures 
such as the self-representing processes. 

Mr. Marcus Oshiro, Chairperson of HLRB introduced some of his HLRB colleagues in the 
event specific information may be asked by this Board.  He explained the background of 
HLRB and that it is administratively attached and operates independently from DLIR and the 
executive and legislative branches. 

1 



 

 
 

   
 

 
   

 
 

   
   

   
    

 
  

 
  

   
 

 
   

  
      

    
   

 
    
      

 
    

    
          

 
   

     
 

 
       

     
 

  
 

    
 
 

   
  

 
 
 

 

HLRB is a quasi-judicial three-member body and functions as an appellate board; the HLRB 
adjudicates complaints between public employers, unions and employees involving prohibited 
practices.  The current rules in chapter 41 and 42 have not been amended since 1981and 
1983, respectively. 

In 2002, the Hawaii legislature transferred cases from Hawaii Occupational, Safety and 
Health (HIOSH) under Chapter 396 from the Labor and Industrial Appeals Board to HLRB; 
however, the legislature did not direct the promulgation of any rules.  Since that time, HLRB 
has reviewed hundreds of HIOSH cases under the existing Chapters 41 and 42.  Thus, the 
main purpose of proposed Chapter 43 is to streamline the procedure of contested case 
hearings in front of HLRB by incorporating Chapters 41 and 42 which has been an on-going 
process over the past several years. 

Mr. Oshiro also explained that there is no apparent small business impact based on the 
proposed rules nor are there any imposed fees or indirect costs that would impact small 
businesses.  

Vice Chair Albitz noted that she was impressed with HLRB’s stakeholder outreach efforts 
where numerous organizations were contacted.  Chair Cundiff echoed Vice Chair Albitz’a 
comments and commended Mr. Oshiro’s due diligence for attending prior meetings of this 
Board as well as the level of outreach into the community to the stakeholders for input, which 
was very extensive.  These actions clearly allow for much a smoother and easier process. 

In response to Mr. Ritchie’s question regarding the expressed positive impact on small 
businesses, HLRB member Ms. Sesnita Moepono, explained that HLRB created an electronic 
filing system in the proposed rules that come before HLRB, which is free to all the parties.  
The system allows individuals, attorneys and small businesses to maneuver a file on-line 
anywhere in the world and retrieve all of the filings connected to the initial filing anywhere in 
the world as long as Internet is service accessible. 

In addition, Ms. Moepono, explained that all the processes for the self-contested case 
hearings were combined into one chapter; this process has proven to be easier to refer to one 
set of rules rather than two separate chapters. 

Vice Chair Albitz motioned to send the proposed new chapter to public hearing.  Mr. Ritchie 
seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Update on the Board’s Proposed Phase II Website Project 

B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in 
accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS 

2 



 

 
 

  
   

  
   

  
 

  
  

     
 

       
 

     
                     

V. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS 

A. Discussion and Action on the Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitted for 
Consideration for the Gubernatorial Nomination of William Lydgate to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board to expire June 30, 2026 

Vice Chair Albitz motioned to nominate and provide testimony in support of Mr. Lydgate’s 
nomination to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board.  Second Vice Chair Shick 
seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

VI. NEXT MEETING - Thursday, March 10, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. 

VII. ADJOURNMENT – Vice Chair Albitz made a motion to adjourn the meeting and 
Second Vice Chair Shick seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned at 10:40 a.m. 

3 



 
 

 
 
 

      

     
  
   
    
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III. Old Business – After Public Hearing 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed 
Amendments and the Small Business 
Statement After Public Hearing for HAR 
Title 16 Chapter 73, Barbers, promulgated 
by DCCA 



AriolaJK
Received









 
  

   
 

     
  

    
 

    
     

   
     

     
   

   
    

 
        

     

  

   
     

   
      

     

  
  

 

 

    
  

 

October 2021 Meeting Minutes 

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 16 Chapter 73, 
Barbers, promulgated by Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (DCCA) 

Discussion leader Ms. Rodighiero explained that the proposed rule changes represent 
medical clearances for all barber and cosmetologist licensees, which total 
approximately 11,000. However, during the COVID-19 epidemic and in order to help 
ease the financial pressure, this medical clearance was removed, although the DCCA 
boards still have discretion to make any exceptions or requests for medical clearance, if 
needed.  

Ms. Jenny Yam, Executive Officer at DCCA’s Professional and Vocational Licensing 
Division, clarified that this proposal is not a permanent requirement for licensure.  The 
only time when this rule provision would take effect is if and when DOH declares an 
emergency or an epidemic. 

Ms. Yam explained that when the COVID-19 crisis began in March 2020, the State of 
Hawaii was deemed in an emergency whereby the Governor issued a statewide stay-at-
home mandate.  This emergency was carried over until May 2020 when the state 
allowed barbershops and beauty salons to reopen. 

Subsequently, the statute for medical clearance and the respective rules were 
suspended by the Governor’s 8th to the 21st emergency proclamations, the latter of 
which expired August 6, 2021. The Governor has since approved emergency rules to 
be adopted to repeal this mandate for 120 days so that DCCA can go through the 
regular rule-review process for the “official” repeal. 

Ms. Yam further explained that this rule proposal is in front of this Board for 
consideration of any potential small business impact. However, during the entire time 
and up until August 6th, there were no concerns or questions from the public or from 
small business. Also, when the State Boards officially met and reviewed the repeal 
proposals, there were again no concerns or questions from the public or small business. 

Ms. Rodighiero motioned to move the proposed amendments to public hearing. 
Mr. Ritchie seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

D. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 16 Chapter 78 
Cosmetology, promulgated by DCCA 

See discussion above in Section IV. C. 

Ms. Rodighiero motioned to move the proposed amendments to public hearing. 
Second Vice Chair Shick seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously 
agreed. 

6 

AriolaJK
Highlight

AriolaJK
Highlight



 

 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 16-73 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

November 30, 2021 

1. Chapter 16-73, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
entitled "Barbers", is amended and compiled to read as 
follows: 

“HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 16 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

CHAPTER 73 

BARBERS 

Subchapter 1 General Provisions 

§16-73-1 Objective 
§16-73-2 Definitions 
§16-73-3 Notification and filing of names, 

addresses, and changes 
§16-73-4 Exceptions to place of practice 
§16-73-5 Number of apprentices limited 
§16-73-6 Display of licenses or permits 
§16-73-7 Renewal of licenses 
§16-73-8 Workmanship 

73-1 

AriolaJK
Received



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 

  

Subchapter 2 Applications 

§16-73-11 Forms and instructions 
§16-73-12 Application for examination  
§16-73-13 Application for barber apprentice  
§16-73-14 Application for barber shop license  

Subchapter 3 Qualification Requirements  

§16-73-18 Qualification for barber and barber 
apprentice 

§16-73-19 Qualification for barber shop 
§16-73-20 Temporary permit 
§16-73-20.5 Barber training program 
§16-73-21 Denial of application 
§16-73-22 Demand for hearing 
§16-73-23 Proceedings upon demand for hearing 

Subchapter 4 Examination  

§16-73-27 Barber 
§16-73-28 Reexamination 
§16-73-29 Reader/interpreter 
§16-73-30 Credits 
§16-73-31 Passing score 
§16-73-32 Place of examination 

Subchapter 5 Requirements for a Barber Shop 

§16-73-36 Public health 
§16-73-37 Shop conditions 
§16-73-38 Sanitary practices 
§16-73-39 Infectious and contagious diseases  
§16-73-40 Shop license 
§16-73-41 Display of shop license 
§16-73-42 Failure to comply 
§16-73-43 Repealed 

73-2 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Subchapter 6 Violation 

§16-73-47 Violation 
§16-73-48 Restoration of forfeited license 

Subchapter 7 Practice and Procedure  

§16-73-51 Administrative practice and procedure 

Subchapter 8 Medical Clearance – Repealed 

§16-73-56 Repealed 

Subchapter 9 Oral Testimony  

§16-73-61 Oral testimony 

SUBCHAPTER 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§16-73-1 Objective. This chapter adopted by the 
board of barbers, hereafter referred to as "board," is 
intended to clarify and implement chapter 438, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, to the end that the provisions 
thereunder may be best effectuated and the public 
interest most effectively protected. [Eff 8/11/66; am 
and ren §16-73-1, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-5) 

73-3 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

§16-73-2 Definitions. Definitions of terms 
found in section 438-1, HRS, shall be adopted by 
reference. In addition, as used in chapter 438, HRS, 
and this chapter: 

"Barber training" means barber apprenticeship in 
a licensed barber shop under supervision of a licensed 
barber or as a student at a barber school with 
licensed barbers and licensed by the state department 
of education. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-2, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§§438-1, 438-7, 438-10) 

§16-73-3 Notification and filing of names, 
addresses, and changes. (a) Each person holding a 
license, permit, or any other authority to practice or 
engage in any activity in the State, under any and all 
laws administered by the board, shall file the 
person's proper and current mailing address with the 
board and shall immediately notify the board in 
writing of any and all changes which occur. 

(b) In addition to the requirements of 
subsection (a), each holder of a license to operate a 
barber shop shall file the name and location of the 
barber shop, the name and license number of the barber 
in charge of the shop, and in the case of a 
partnership or a corporation, shall also file with the 
board the names and addresses of the partners or 
officers and directors, as the case may be, and shall 
notify the board within ten days of any and all 
changes which occur. Licenses are not transferable. 

If a barber shop changes ownership it is 
considered a new shop. A barber shop that is 
remodeled and reopened on the same site as an existing 
shop and under the same ownership shall not be 
considered a new shop. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-
73-3, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §§438-2, 438-5) 

73-4 



 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

§16-73-4 Exceptions to place of practice. (a) 
A duly licensed barber may practice outside of a 
licensed barber shop: 

(1) To service the public who for valid reasons 
are unable to visit a shop; 

(2) Barber schools; 
(3) Beauty shops; or 
(4) For a charitable event. 
(b) The conditions for practicing outside of a 

shop are as follows: 
(1) Arrangements are made through a licensed 

shop; 
(2) Records are kept of such arrangements; and 
(3) The service shall comply with sanitary 

practices of section 16-73-38. [Eff 
8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-4, 7/30/81; am 
and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-2) 

§16-73-5 Number of apprentices limited. There 
shall not be a ratio of more than two apprentices to 
one barber in any barber shop. [Eff 8/11/66; am and 
ren §16-73-5, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-7) 

§16-73-6 Display of licenses or permits. The 
permit or license together with evidence of current 
validation, shall be conspicuously displayed at or 
near the barber's work station and the person to whom 
it was issued shall have evidence of current 
validation. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-6, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-9) 

73-5 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

§16-73-7 Renewal of licenses. Renewal fees paid 
by mail shall be considered paid when due if the 
envelope bears a postmark of December 31 or earlier of 
the year in which the fees were due. [Eff 8/11/66; am 
and ren §16-73-7, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and 
comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-12) 

§16-73-8 Workmanship. All work performed shall 
conform to the industry standards. Conduct or 
practice contrary to recognized industry standards 
shall be construed as professional misconduct, gross 
negligence, or manifest incapacity. [Eff and comp 
8/25/90; comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-14) 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

APPLICATIONS 

§16-73-11 Forms and instructions. An 
application filed with the board shall be prepared in 
accord with and contain the information called for in 
the application form provided by the board and any 
instructions which may be required by the board with 
respect to the filing. The application forms may be 
modified from time to time as required. [Eff 8/11/66; 
am and ren §16-73-11, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; 
comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-7) 

73-6 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

§16-73-12 Application for examination. An 
application to take the examination shall be filed at 
least forty-five days before the examination. 
Examinations are regularly conducted four times a 
year. An application for examination shall be 
accompanied by the required fee which shall not be 
refunded. The executive secretary of the board shall 
determine the sufficiency of preliminary 
qualifications of applicants for admission to 
examination. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-12, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-7) 

§16-73-13 Application for barber apprentice. An 
application for barber apprentice shall satisfy the 
qualification requirements. The barber apprentice 
shall include a barber student who shall register with 
the board as a barber apprentice. The executive 
secretary or such other person as may be designated by 
the department shall determine the sufficiency of 
qualifications of applicants. [Eff 8/11/66; am and 
ren §16-73-13, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and 
comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-7) 

§16-73-14 Application for barber shop license. 
The executive secretary or such other person as may be 
designated by the department shall determine the 
sufficiency of qualifications of applicants. [Eff 
8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-14, 7/30/81; am and comp 
8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §§438-2, 438-7) 

73-7 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

§16-73-18 Qualification for barber and barber 
apprentice. (a) A barber and barber apprentice shall 
file a notarized application. The application shall 
include: 

(1) Verification that the applicant is at least 
seventeen years of age; and 

(2) The required and appropriate fees. 
(b) A barber applicant, in addition to complying 

with subsection (a), shall provide verification of 
successfully completing at least fifteen hundred clock 
hours of barber training as reflected in section 16-
73-20.5. 

(c) Upon complying with subsection (a), a barber 
apprentice applicant shall be issued an apprentice 
permit to learn and train in the practice of 
barbering. The apprentice permit shall be valid for a 
period that covers fifteen hundred clock hours but not 
more than twelve months, provided that an extension of 
not more than six months may be granted upon request 
with an explanation for the extension. 

(d) Any barber apprentice registered with the 
board prior to January 1, 1994, and files a barber 
application before July 31, 1994, may satisfy the 
barber training requirement of section 16-73-18(b) 
upon completion of at least six months of experience 
under supervision of a licensed barber. The training 
shall include but is not limited to: 

(1) Barber regulations; 
(2) Safety and sanitation; 
(3) Haircutting (standard and styling); 
(4) Shaving; 
(5) Scalp and facial treatment; 
(6) Permanent waving; 
(7) Hair coloring and lightening; and 
(8) Product chemistry. 

73-8 



 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

(e) A barber applicant who has not obtained 
licensure after four consecutive examinations offered 
by the board shall be required to apply as a barber 
apprentice and train for six months before qualifying 
for another series of examinations. The barber 
applicant shall provide verification of the six month 
barber training. The six months of barber training 
shall be concentrated in the areas of the applicant's 
weaknesses. 

(f) A barber applicant's training requirement 
may be satisfied in whole or in part with equivalent 
out-of-state barber training. Should the out-of-state 
training be insufficient to satisfy the training 
requirement, then the difference may be made up by 
verification of at least six months barbering 
experience. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-18, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-7) 

§16-73-19 Qualification for barber shop. (a) 
An applicant for a barber shop license shall file a 
notarized application and provide the following: 

(1) Name and license number of the licensed 
barber to qualify shop for license; 

(2) Verification that the shop complies with the 
sanitation requirements of the department of 
health; and 

(3) If the applicant is a corporation or 
partnership, verification of proper 
registration with the business registration 
division (BREG) of the department. 

(b) The licensed barber shop shall be 
responsible for all operations of the shop and shall 
be responsible to see that only currently qualified 
persons are practicing in the shop. 

(c) The barber shop license is nontransferable. 
The following changes require filing of a barber shop 
application along with payment of required fees: 

73-9 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

(1) A change in ownership shall meet the shop 
qualification requirements and be considered 
a new license[.]; 

(2) A change in shop name shall identify a 
licensed barber and shop owner without 
affecting the shop license number[.]; and

(3) A shop relocation shall require filing of a 
sanitation clearance and identification of a 
licensed barber without affecting the shop 
license number. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren 
§16-73-19, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am 
and comp 11/25/94; am and comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: 
HRS §§438-2, 438-7) 

§16-73-20 Temporary permit. (a) A temporary 
permit shall be issued upon request to barber 
applicants that have been approved for examination. 
The temporary permit authorizes the permittee to work 
and train while waiting for examination. The 
temporary permit covers a period of four examinations 
as consecutively scheduled by the board from the date 
of qualifying for the first examination. 

(b) The qualified barber applicant shall file a 
temporary permit application and pay a temporary 
permit fee as provided in chapter 16-53. 

(c) The temporary permit provides that a 
qualified applicant work and train under supervision 
of a licensed barber in a qualified shop. [Eff 
8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-20, 7/30/81; am and comp 
8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-10) 

§16-73-20.5 Barber training program. (a) The 
barber training program provides the standards and 
procedures for barber training as identified as 
Exhibit A, dated September 7, 1993, located at the end 
of this chapter. The program reflects the barbering 
subjects, the range of training hours for each subject 

73-10 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

and the minimum required operations for the identified 
subjects. 

(b) The barber training curriculum shall be not 
less than fifteen hundred clock hours that includes 
but is not limited to the subjects, hours and 
operations as identified as Exhibit B, dated September 
7, 1993, located at the end of this chapter. 

(c) The barber training progress report reflects 
the monthly training hours and operations as 
identified as Exhibit C, dated September 7, 1993, 
located at the end of this chapter. The progress 
report shall be retained by the barber school or shop 
and be subject to inspection by the board. 

(d) The notice of completion or withdrawal of 
barber training shall be utilized to reflect the 
completed training in hours in the appropriate 
subjects as identified as Exhibit D, dated September 
7, 1993, located at the end of this chapter. 

(e) Sixty minutes shall constitute one 
curriculum hour. Theory training shall be classroom 
type training of reading and acquiring knowledge of 
the practice of barbering. Theory training shall be 
introduced before practical application training 
begins. Practical application training shall occur on 
a mannequin or model before training on clients. 

(f) Practical application operations are 
reflected as hands-on training in the identified 
subject areas whether the training occurs on 
mannequins, models or clients. 

(g) Barber training shall occur in a licensed 
barber school or shop. Barber students or apprentices 
shall first register with the board before barber 
training begins. [Eff and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-7) 

§16-73-21 Denial of application. In the event 
any application is denied, the board shall notify the 
applicant by letter of the board's action. The letter 
shall include a concise statement of the reasons for 

73-11 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

denial and a statement informing the applicant of the 
right to a hearing. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-
21, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-6) 

§16-73-22 Demand for hearing. Each person whose 
application has been denied shall be entitled to a 
hearing, provided that a demand for a hearing is filed 
with the board within sixty days of the date of 
mailing of the letter informing the applicant of the 
board's denial. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-22, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-6) 

§16-73-23 Proceedings upon demand for hearing. 
If a demand for hearing is filed within the time 
prescribed, the board shall order a hearing, in 
accordance with chapter 16-201. [Eff 8/11/66; am and 
ren §16-73-23, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and 
comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

EXAMINATION 

§16-73-27 Barber. (a) Barber examinations 
shall be conducted in accordance with procedures 
formulated by the testing service and authorized by 
the board to develop and administer examinations. 
Failure to comply with established procedures may 
result in disqualification from future examinations. 

73-12 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

(b) The examinations shall incorporate the 
board's law and rules, barber theory and practical 
barber demonstration. 

(c) The examination shall be conducted four 
times a year, usually in March, June, September, and 
December. 

(d) The examination shall be given in the 
English language. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-27, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-8) 

§16-73-28 Re-examination. The applicant not 
achieving a passing score on any part shall be 
required to retake and pass each part failed to be 
licensed as a barber, provided that the applicant must 
pass the failed parts by the fourth examination as 
consecutively scheduled by the board from the date of 
qualifying for the first examination. Should the 
applicant fail to achieve a passing grade by the 
fourth examination as consecutively scheduled by the 
board, the applicant shall be required to apply as an 
apprentice for six months before qualifying for 
another series of examinations. [Eff 8/11/66; am and 
ren §16-73-28, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and 
comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-8) 

§16-73-29 Reader/interpreter. An applicant 
shall be permitted to have a reader/interpreter for 
the written examination parts. The cost of a 
reader/interpreter shall be borne by the applicant. 
The applicant requesting a reader/interpreter shall be 
a person not having the ability to read and comprehend 
the English language because of education, first 
language difficulty, or a medical handicap. The 
reader/interpreter shall not be associated with the 
barber or cosmetology profession. [Eff 8/11/66; am 

73-13 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

and ren §16-73-29, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-8) 

§16-73-30 Credits.  The applicant shall earn 
credits for each examination part passed and the 
credit shall be maintained for the next three 
examinations as consecutively scheduled by the board 
from the date the applicant first qualifies for 
examination. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-30, 
7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-8) 

§16-73-31 Passing score. A grade of not less 
than 75.00 points shall be a passing score for any 
part of the examination. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren 
§16-73-31, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-8) 

§16-73-32 Place of examination. The 
examinations shall be regularly held in Honolulu. 
However, upon timely request by applicants residing on 
an island other than Oahu and a showing that their 
number exceeds eight, the board may, in its 
discretion, conduct examinations on that neighboring 
island. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-32, 7/30/81; 
am and comp 8/25/90; comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-8) 

73-14 



 
 

 
 
 
   

 

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER 5 

REQUIREMENTS FOR A BARBER SHOP 

§16-73-36 Public health. Each applicant shall 
submit a certificate from the state department of 
health which indicates that the shop meets all 
sanitation and public health requirements before a 
license to operate and conduct a barber shop shall be 
issued. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-36, 7/30/81; 
am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-2) 

§16-73-37 Shop conditions. A person who 
operates a barber shop shall comply with the following 
conditions: 

(1) The walls, floors, ceilings, furniture, 
fixtures, and all other parts and surfaces 
in a shop shall be kept clean at all times. 
Hair dropping shall be removed from the 
floor as soon as practicable and placed in a 
securely covered container pending disposal. 
Excessive accumulations shall not be 
allowed; 

(2) Every shop shall be properly and adequately 
lighted and ventilated; 

(3) Every shop shall be provided with adequate 
sanitary facilities, including toilets, hot 
and cold running water, sinks or wash 
basins. Toilets shall be located in 
suitable and properly ventilated toilet 
rooms with self-closing doors; and 

(4) A work station, including barber chair, 
shall be maintained in a safe, clean, and 
sanitary manner. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren 
§16-73-37, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am 

73-15 



 

 

 

 

 

 

and comp 11/25/94; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-7) 

§16-73-38 Sanitary practices. All persons who 
are engaged in barbering shall observe the following 
sanitary practices: 

(1) The use of any astringent in lump or styptic 
pencil form, sponge, lump alum, powder puff, 
neck duster, shaving brush, or shaving mug 
shall be prohibited in any shop. Possession 
of the same is prima facie evidence that 
same is being used there in the practice of 
barbering; 

(2) No barber shall stop the flow of blood by 
using alum or other material unless the same 
is used in liquid form or as a powder and 
applied with a clean towel; 

(3) Razors, shears, scissors, clippers, 
tweezers, finger bowls, or combs, or any 
like article shall not be used on any 
customer unless they have been thoroughly 
cleaned and sanitized since last used. All 
such instruments shall be thoroughly cleaned 
and sanitized by a method approved by the 
department of health, after having been used 
on a patron. After sanitization, they shall 
be stored in a manner to prevent 
contamination, or be sanitized again 
immediately before reuse; 

(4) No barber shall remove or attempt to remove 
any wart, mole, pimple, or ingrown hair or 
undertake any treatment properly performable 
by persons trained in medical science. 
Cleaning of ears is prohibited; 

(5) All persons engaged in barbering shall wash 
their hands thoroughly with soap and hot 
water immediately before attending to any 
person, and shall wear at all times a clean 
uniform or outer coat or apron of washable 
material; 

73-16 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

(6) Towels or other fabrics that come in contact 
with the skin or hair of a person shall not 
be used on more than one patron without 
being laundered in an acceptable manner. 
Such towel or fabric after use on a patron, 
shall be placed in a hamper or suitable 
receptacle, from which it shall not be 
removed except for laundering or final 
disposal. Laundry shall be washed clean and 
then subjected to a sanitizing process 
before being used on a patron again. The 
sanitation process shall hold such laundry 
for at least twenty minutes at a temperature 
of at least 180°F; 

(7) Prior to serving any patron, the headrest of 
any chair shall be covered with a clean 
towel or a clean sheet of paper. If any 
towel or implement is to be wet, such towel 
or implement shall be wet in running water 
and shall not be dipped in any water 
container; 

(8) All towels and other linens used in any shop 
shall be kept in a closed cabinet at all 
times when not in use; 

(9) All creams, tonic, cosmetics, and other 
applications used on patrons shall be kept 
in clean closed containers; and 

(10) A clean strip of cotton, towel, or paper 
band shall be placed around the neck of each 
patron served so that at no time will the 
hair, cloth, or cape come in contact with 
the neck or skin of the patron. [Eff 
8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-38, 7/30/81; am 
and comp 8/25/90; comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-7) 

§16-73-39 Infectious and contagious diseases. 
(a) Persons afflicted with a contagious or infectious 
disease in a communicable form shall not be permitted 

73-17 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
   

 

 
 
 
   

to attend any person in any barber shop, nor shall any 
person afflicted with such disease be permitted to 
receive any treatment in any barber shop. 

(b) Any person who has been afflicted with any 
such disease shall return to work only upon a written 
statement from a physician that it is safe for the 
person to return to work. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren 
§16-73-39, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-8.5) 

§16-73-40 Shop license. More than one license 
to conduct a barber shop may be issued to any place of 
business; provided that each license holder is jointly 
and severally responsible and liable to the board. 
[Eff 8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-40, 7/30/81; am and 
comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-2) 

§16-73-41 Display of shop license. (a) The 
license to operate and conduct a barber shop shall be 
conspicuously displayed, together with evidence of 
current validation, in the place of business. 

(b) The shop owner or person in charge of the 
shop shall be responsible to see that only qualified 
persons are permitted to practice in the shop and 
ensure that the license or permit is conspicuously 
displayed adjacent to or near the work station. [Eff 
8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-41, 7/30/81; am and comp 
8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §§438-2, 438-9) 

§16-73-42 Failure to comply. Refusal or neglect 
on the part of any owner, manager, or employee to 
comply with this chapter shall be construed to be 

73-18 



  

 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

unprofessional conduct and may subject any violator to 
suspension or revocation of the license. [Eff 
8/11/66; am and ren §16-73-42, 7/30/81; am and comp 
8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-14) 

§16-73-43 Repealed. [R 8/25/90] 

SUBCHAPTER 6 

VIOLATION 

§16-73-47 Violation. (a) Any person or 
corporation who shall practice, maintain a shop, or 
act in any capacity without a license or permit, when 
a license or permit is required as provided for by 
chapter 438, HRS, and this chapter shall be prosecuted 
as provided by law, which may include but is not 
limited to revocation, suspension, fine or combination 
thereof, or refusal to grant or renew any license or 
permit. 

(b) In all cases where the board proposes to 
suspend, revoke, fine or refuse to grant or renew any 
license or permit, it shall afford all parties an 
opportunity to be heard as provided for under chapter 
91, HRS, and chapter 16-201. [Eff 8/11/66; am and ren 
§16-73-47, 7/30/81; am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 
11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §§438-5, 438-13) 

§16-73-48 Restoration of forfeited license. (a) 
A license is immediately and automatically forfeited 
after the expiration date for non-compliance with the 
requirements for maintaining or renewing the license. 

73-19 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

(b) A forfeited license may be restored under 
the following conditions: 

(1) File a completed restoration application 
along with a notarized signature; 

(2) Payment of all delinquent biennial renewal 
fees including the current fee; 

(3) Payment of a penalty fee for each biennial 
renewal as provided in the department's fee 
rules, chapter 16-53; and, 

(4) Should the restoration request be made after 
three years from the date of forfeiture, a 
written explanation along with supporting 
documentation shall be necessary and shall 
be subject to approval by the board. [Eff 
and comp 11/25/94; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-12) 

SUBCHAPTER 7 

PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE 

§16-73-51 Administrative practice and procedure. 
The rules of practice and procedure for barbering 
shall be as provided in chapter 16-201, which are 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
chapter. [Eff 11/1/65; am and ren §16-73-51, 7/30/81; 
am and comp 8/25/90; am and comp 11/25/94; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §91-2) (Imp: HRS 
§91-2) 

[SUBCHAPTER 8 

MEDICAL CLEARANCE 

73-20 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

§16-73-56 Medical clearance. If the department 
of health declares an emergency or epidemic concerning 
one or more contagious or infectious disease or 
diseases, all licensed barbers, barber applicants, and 
apprentices shall provide a medical clearance 
certificate from a physician attesting that the 
licensee or applicant is free from that particular 
contagious or infectious disease or diseases as the 
case may be.] [Eff and comp 8/25/90; comp 11/25/94; 
R ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-8.5) 

SUBCHAPTER 9 

ORAL TESTIMONY 

§16-73-61 Oral testimony. (a) The board shall 
accept oral testimony on any item which is on the 
agenda, provided that the testimony shall be subject 
to the following conditions: 

(1) Each person seeking to present oral 
testimony shall notify the board not later 
than forty-eight hours prior to the meeting, 
and at that time shall state the item on 
which testimony is to be presented; 

(2) The board may request that any person 
providing oral testimony submit the remarks, 
or a summary of the remarks, in writing to 
the board; 

(3) The board may rearrange the items on the 
agenda for the purpose of providing for the 
most efficient and convenient presentation 
of oral testimony; 

(4) Persons presenting oral testimony at the 
beginning of the testimony shall identify 
themselves and the organization, if any, 
that they represent; 

73-21 



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(5) The board may limit oral testimony to a 
specified time period but in no case shall 
the period be less than five minutes, and 
the person testifying shall be informed 
prior to the commencement of the testimony 
of the time constraints to be imposed; and 

(6) The board may refuse to hear any testimony 
which is irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly 
repetitious to the agenda item on which it 
is presented. 

(b) Nothing in this section shall require the 
board to hear or receive any oral or documentary 
evidence from a person on any matter which is the 
subject of another proceeding pending subject to the 
hearings relief, declaratory relief, or rule relief 
provisions of chapter 16-201. 

(c) Nothing in this section shall prevent the 
board from soliciting oral remarks from persons 
present at the meeting or from inviting persons to 
make presentations to the board on any particular 
matter on the board's agenda.” [Eff and comp 8/25/90; 
comp 11/25/94; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§438-5) (Imp: HRS §92-3) 

2. Material, except source notes and other 
notes, to be repealed is bracketed and stricken. New 
material is underscored. 

3. Additions to update source notes and other 
notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are 
not underscored. 

4. These amendments to and compilation of 
chapter 16-73, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take 
effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
Lieutenant Governor. 

73-22 



I certify that the foregoing are copies of the 
rules drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the 
requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, which were adopted on November 30,2021 and 
filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

CATHERINE P. AWAKUNI COLÓN 
Director of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Deputy Attorney General 

73-23 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     

      
 

  
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III. Old Business – After Public Hearing 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed 
Amendments and the Small Business 
Statement After Public Hearing for HAR 
Title 16 Chapter 78, Cosmetology, 
promulgated by DCCA 







 

      

      
   

   

      
        

   

    

   

       

   

  
 
 
 
       
 

   
   
      

    
     
     

      
   
   

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 16-78 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

November 30, 2021 

1. Chapter 16-78, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
entitled "Cosmetology" is amended and compiled to read 
as follows: 

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 16 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

CHAPTER 78 

COSMETOLOGY 

Subchapter 1 General Provisions 

§16-78-1 Objective 
§16-78-2 Definitions 
§16-78-3 Notification and filing of names, 

addresses, and changes 
§16-78-4 Duplicate certificates and licenses 
§16-78-5 Renewal of license 
§16-78-5.5 Restoration of forfeited license 
§16-78-6 Responsibility 
§16-78-7 Workmanship 

78-1 

AriolaJK
Received



 

    

   
       
    
     
   
     
     
     

 
 
      
 

     
       
    
   

 
 
      
 

    
    
   
   
   
     
   

 
 
        
 

   
   

 
 
        
 

      

Subchapter 2 Applications 

§16-78-9 Forms and instructions 
§16-78-10 Application for examination and license 
§16-78-11 License applications 
§16-78-12 Applications for registration 
§16-78-13 Denial 
§16-78-14 Demand for hearing 
§16-78-15 Falsification of application 
§16-78-16 Abandonment of application 

Subchapter 3 Validation 

§16-78-19 Requirements for registration 
§16-78-20 Requirements for examination and license 
§16-78-21 Temporary permit 
§16-78-22 Curriculum 

Subchapter 4 Examinations 

§16-78-26 Subject matter 
§16-78-27 Passing score 
§16-78-28 Examination 
§16-78-29 Reexamination 
§16-78-30 Language 
§16-78-31 Supplies and equipment 
§16-78-32 Repealed 

Subchapter 5 Exemptions and Exceptions 

§16-78-36 Exemptions 
§16-78-37 Exceptions 

Subchapter 6 Beauty Shop Requirements 

§16-78-41 Compliance with other laws 

78-2 



 

 
  

   
   

 
        
 

   
   
   
     
     
   
    
    
   
    
   
   
    
   
   
   
   

 
 
       
 

    
 
 
        
 

      
 
 
       
 

  
 
 

§16-78-42 Shop 
§16-78-43 Price list 
§16-78-44 Employment of apprentices 
§16-78-45 Employment of barbers 

Subchapter 7 Beauty School Requirements 

§16-78-48 Schools 
§16-78-49 Application 
§16-78-50 License 
§16-78-51 Courses of study 
§16-78-52 Law and rules 
§16-78-53 Principal 
§16-78-54 Instructor-student ratio 
§16-78-55 Instructor trainee 
§16-78-56 Bond 
§16-78-57 School facilities 
§16-78-58 Equipment 
§16-78-59 Enrollment 
§16-78-60 School hours 
§16-78-61 Students 
§16-78-62 Instructors 
§16-78-63 Library 
§16-78-64 Signs 

Subchapter 8 Oral Testimony 

§16-78-68 Oral testimony 

Subchapter 9 Practice and Procedure 

§16-78-72 Administrative practice and procedure 

Subchapter 10 Medical Clearance--Repealed 

§16-78-76 Repealed 

78-3 



 

  

  

 
          

       
        

          
                      

        
 
 
 
     
       

      
     

      
        

  
         
       

       
          

        
       

          
           
       
     

     
      
       

 
      

         
          
        
                       

     

SUBCHAPTER 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§16-78-1 Objective. This chapter is intended to 
clarify and implement chapter 439, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, to the end that the provisions thereunder 
may be best effectuated. [Eff 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-2 Definitions. 
"Beauty school”, unless the context clearly 

indicates otherwise, means a postsecondary school 
engaged in teaching cosmetology. 

“Certificate of registration" means either a 
license or a registration certificate issued by the 
board. 

"Director" means the director of the department. 
"Executive secretary" means any person employed 

and assigned by the department to provide 
administrative services to the board, and to act as a 
liaison between the board and the department. 

"Instructor-trainee" means a person who is 
engaged in a school in learning to be an instructor 
and while so doing does or assists in teaching any of 
the classified practices under the direct supervision 
of an instructor. 

"Person" includes individuals, partnerships, 
corporations, associations, or public or private 
organization of any character other than governmental 
agencies. 

“Postsecondary” means beyond the education 
equivalent to the completion of high school or grade 
twelve. [Eff 7/4/64; am 4/17/70; am and ren §16-78-2, 
7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; am 
9/26/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(IMP: HRS §439-1) 

78-4 



 

       
     

         
         

      
       
      

           
         

          
         

         
      

       
         

           
           

          
       
          
         
          
         

        
                         

  
 
 
 
         

        
         

       
                         

  
 
 
 

§16-78-3 Notification and filing of names, 
addresses, and changes. (a) Any licensed person 
shall file one's mailing address with the board and 
shall notify the board in writing within thirty days 
of any and all changes. 

(b) In addition to the requirements of 
subsection (a), an apprentice or instructor-trainee 
shall file with the board the name and address of the 
beauty shop or school where that person is learning 
and the name and license number of the beauty operator 
or instructor from whom that person is learning, and 
shall notify the board in writing within thirty days 
of any and all changes. 

(c) In addition to the requirements of 
subsection (a) a licensed beauty shop, or school shall 
file the name and location of the shop or school, the 
name and license number of the person in charge of and 
responsible for the shop or school, and, in the case 
of a partnership, corporation, or association, shall 
also file with the board the names and addresses of 
the partners, officers, and directors, as the case may 
be, and shall notify the board within thirty days of 
all changes. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-3, 
7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

§16-78-4 Duplicate certificates and licenses. A 
fee shall be assessed for duplicate certificates and 
licenses. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-4, 7/2/81; 
am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

78-5 



 

         
           

          
          

    
        

 
 
 
        

        
       

        
  
        

    
      

      
       

      
         

       
     

        
        
     

      
        

                      
       

 
 
 
         

        
          

         
         

                         
  

 
 

§16-78-5 Renewal of license. Renewal fees paid 
by mail shall be considered as paid when due if the 
envelope bears a postmark of December 31 or earlier. 
[Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-5, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-15) 

§16-78-5.5 Restoration of forfeited license. 
(a) A license is immediately and automatically 
forfeited after the expiration date for non-compliance 
with the requirements for maintaining or renewing the 
license. 

(b) A forfeited license may be restored under 
the following conditions: 

(1) File a completed restoration application 
along with a valid signature; 

(2) Payment of all delinquent biennial renewal 
fees including the current fee; 

(3) Payment of a penalty fee for each biennial 
renewal as provided in the department's fee 
rules, chapter 16-53; and 

(4) Should the restoration request be made after 
three years from the date of forfeiture, a 
written explanation along with supporting 
documentation shall be necessary and shall 
be subject to approval. [Eff and comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§439-2) (Imp: HRS §439-15) 

§16-78-6 Responsibility. Beauty shop or beauty 
school shall be responsible for all operations and 
shall be responsible to see that only duly licensed or 
registered persons work in the place of business or 
school. [Eff and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

78-6 



 

        
        
      

       
        

                      
        

 
 
 

   

  
 
 
 
          

       
         
         

        
         

        
       
      

        
       

         
       

                         
   

 
 
 
       

        
         

          
         
     

§16-78-7 Workmanship. All work performed shall 
conform to the industry standards. Conduct or 
practice contrary to recognized industry standards 
shall be construed as professional misconduct, gross 
carelessness, or manifest incapacity. [Eff and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-19) 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

APPLICATIONS 

§16-78-9 Forms and instructions. (a) An 
application, accompanied by the required fees and 
filed with the board, shall be prepared in accordance 
with and contain the information called for in the 
application form prescribed by the board, or any 
instructions which may be required by the board. 

(b) The executive secretary or such other person 
authorized by the department shall determine the 
sufficiency of qualifications of applicants. 

(c) The applicant shall attach to the required 
and appropriate application a recent passport sized 
photograph. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-9, 7/2/81; 
am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§438-5, 439-15) (Imp: 
HRS §439-11) 

§16-78-10 Application for examination and 
license. (a) Applications for examination and 
license for a beauty operator or an instructor shall 
be filed at least seven weeks prior to the examination 
month, which may be regularly given not less than 
three times a year. 

78-7 



 

        
       

       
        

          
                      

         
 
 
 
        

        
       
        

  
        

      
  

        
       

        
    
    

    
        

      
         

    
        

       
         

         
                      

           
 
 
 
       

       
         

         

(b) A temporary permit may be issued to an 
applicant that has met the requirements for 
examination. The applicant shall provide the 
information necessary to issue a temporary permit. 
[Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-10, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §§439-11, 439-16) 

§16-78-11 License applications. (a) 
Applications for license of a beauty shop shall 
include the necessary documents and information as 
required in sections 16-78-41 to 16-78-45, in addition 
to: 

(1) Verification that the shop complies with the 
sanitary requirements of the department of 
health; 

(2) Name of a currently licensed beauty operator 
who shall practice at the shop; 

(3) Should the applicant be a corporation or 
partnership, verification of proper 
registration with business registration 
division (BREG); and 

(4) Should the applicant be an individual, a 
passport sized photograph of the applicant 
taken not more than one year prior to the 
date of application. 

(b) Applications for license of a beauty school 
shall submit the necessary documents and information 
as required by sections 16-78-48 to 16-78-63. [Eff 
7/4/64; am 12/27/66; am and ren §16-78-11, 7/2/81; am 
and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §§439-17, 439-18) 

§16-78-12 Applications for registration. 
Applications for registration shall be for an 
apprentice and an instructor trainee. [Eff 7/4/64; am 
and ren §16-78-12, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 

78-8 



 

    
 

          
        

         
         

         
         
        

           
         
                      

        
 
 
 
          

        
        

           
          

           
        

       
           

         
         

       
                         

  
 
 
 
        

        
       
         

        
      

2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-13 Denial. In the event an application 
for examination, issuance or restoration of a license, 
or registration is denied or refused, the board shall 
notify the applicant by letter of the board's action 
which shall include a concise statement of the reasons 
therefor and if the applicant is entitled to a 
hearing, a statement informing the applicant to the 
right to a hearing if the applicant so desires. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-13, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-19) 

§16-78-14 Demand for hearing. Any person whose 
application for admission to the examination, for the 
issuance, or restoration of a license, or registration 
has been denied by the board, shall be entitled to a 
hearing; provided that a demand for a hearing is filed 
with the board within sixty days of the date of the 
letter informing the applicant of the denial of 
application; and provided further that this section 
shall not apply to a denial based on the failure to 
file an application within the period provided by this 
chapter. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-14, 7/2/81; 
am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§439-20) 

§16-78-15 Falsification of application. The 
board may deny an applicant admission to the 
examination, or issuance of license, void applicant's 
examination score, or revoke a license on the ground 
of falsification of any information supplied in the 
application for examination, application for license, 

78-9 



 

     
         

        
    
 

 
 
 
        

         
       

         
          

                      
        

 
 
 

   

  
 
 
 
         

     
       

        
         

        
    

        
          

     
       
       

       
        

       
   

       
      

application for registration, experience verification 
form, or supporting documents. [Eff 7/4/64; am and 
ren §16-78-15, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §439-19) 

§16-78-16 Abandonment of application. An 
application shall be deemed to have been abandoned if 
all requirements, including filing of forms and 
payment of fees have not been completed within two 
years from the date first filed. [Eff and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-2) 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

VALIDATION 

§16-78-19 Requirements for registration. (a) 
The apprentice applicant shall: 

(1) Submit verification of having an education 
equivalent to the completion of high school; 

(2) Provide the name and address of the beauty 
shop, and the name of the beauty operator 
supervising the apprentice; 

(3) Applicants who are transferring from a shop 
to a school or a school to a shop shall 
submit verification of training hours 
completed at the shop or school. 
Apprentices transferring to a school may be 
credited with one half number of training 
hours. Students transferring to a shop may 
be credited with double the number of 
training hours; 

(4) Apprentices shall have forty-two months from 
the date of registration to complete 

78-10 



 

        

     
     

     
    

         
         

         
         
   

     
       

        
         

      
       

       
    

        
        

     
         

   
 
 
 
       

        
   

        
    

        
    

       
       

       
    

       
     
      

   

training at the minimum of twenty hours per 
week; 

(5) Apprenticeship training shall comply with 
the board's apprenticeship manual and 
apprenticeship curriculum. Exhibit A 
entitled "Apprenticeship Manual," dated 
March 9, 1988, located at the end of this 
chapter, is made part of this chapter; and 

(6) No credit will be given for beauty training 
in a shop prior to date of registration with 
the board. 

(b) An instructor-trainee shall: 
(1) Submit verification of having an education 

equivalent to the completion of high school; 
(2) Provide a copy of a current beauty operator 

license in good standing; and 
(3) Submit verification of one year beauty 

operator experience in this State or another 
jurisdiction having standards substantially 
equivalent to those of this State. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-19, 7/2/81; am and 
comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: 
HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-20 Requirements for examination and 
license. (a) Instructor applicants shall provide 
verification of: 

(1) Having a current beauty operator license or 
an instructor license; 

(2) Having one year experience as a licensed 
beauty operator; and 

(3) Satisfactorily completing not less than six 
hundred hours or four months of beauty 
school instructor training in this State or 
another jurisdiction having substantially 
equivalent standards. If the training is 
not substantially equivalent, the applicant 
shall provide verification of one year 
instructor experience. 

78-11 



 

      
         

         
       
 

       
         
          

      
      

       
      

         
       
       

        
   

       
      
     

     
        
       

        
       

      
       

       
       
                     
        

 
 
 
          

        
        
     

         
       
         
        

(b) Beauty operator applicants shall have an 
education equivalent to the completion of high school. 
One year experience as a licensed beauty operator in 
another jurisdiction shall satisfy the high school 
education requirement. 

(c) Beauty operator applicants shall satisfy the 
beauty training requirement as a student at a beauty 
school, as an apprentice in a beauty shop, or being 
currently licensed in another jurisdiction. 

(1) Beauty training from another jurisdiction 
shall be accepted provided that the training 
is substantially equivalent to those as 
prescribed by the board. If the training is 
less than those prescribed by the board, 
then the applicant shall make up the 
difference as a beauty student or as an 
apprentice; or 

(2) The license of an applicant currently 
licensed in another jurisdiction shall be 
recognized provided that the jurisdiction 
has substantially equivalent training as 
prescribed by the board. If the training 
requirement is less than those prescribed by 
the board, then the applicant shall make up 
the difference as a beauty student or 
provide verification of one year experience 
as a licensed beauty operator in that 
jurisdiction. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-
78-20, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§§438-5, 439-12) (Imp: §§439-11, 439-12) 

§16-78-21 Temporary permit. (a) A temporary 
permit shall be issued upon request to applicants 
approved for examination to train and work while 
waiting for the examination. 

(b) The temporary permit shall cover a period of 
three examinations as consecutively scheduled by the 
board from the date the applicant qualifies for the 
first examination and requests a temporary permit. 

78-12 



 

      
          

         
       

         
                      

        
 
 
 
         

         
       

    
     

       
          
   

      
       

          
    

     
       

          
        

       
                    

         
  

 
 
 

   

  
 
 
 
         
        

        

(c) The temporary permit provides the qualified 
applicant to train and work in a licensed beauty shop 
under supervision of a licensed beauty operator in the 
appropriate certification category. [Eff 7/4/64; am 
12/27/66; am and ren §16-78-21, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-16) 

§16-78-22 Curriculum. The curriculum for beauty 
training includes, but is not limited to, the subjects 
and hours for each certification category and 
instructor-trainee as follows: 

(1) Exhibit B entitled "Apprenticeship 
Curriculum," dated March 9, 1988, located at 
the end of this chapter, is made a part of 
this chapter; 

(2) Exhibit C entitled "Beauty School 
Curriculum," dated March 9, 1988, located at 
the end of this chapter, is made a part of 
this chapter; and 

(3) Exhibit D entitled "Instructor-trainee 
Curriculum," dated March 9, 1988, located at 
the end of this chapter, is made a part of 
this chapter. [Eff 7/4/64; am 4/17/70; am 
and ren §16-78-22, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §§438-5, 439-12) (Imp: HRS 
§439-12) 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

EXAMINATIONS 

§16-78-26 Subject matter. The examination shall 
be designed to test the applicant's theoretical and 
practical knowledge in the practice of cosmetology and 

78-13 



 

         
       

          
         
      

       
 
 
 
           

          
          
        

                         
 

 
 
 
           

         
         

          
          
  

        
        

         
        

         
       

         
   

      
       

       
        

      
        

          
        

                         
  

cosmetology law and rules which the board or its 
designated testing service determines to be essential 
to the protection of the general public. [Eff 7/4/64; 
am and ren §16-78-26, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; 
comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §439-14) 

§16-78-27 Passing score. A grade of not less 
than 75.00 points shall be a passing score for any 
part of the examination. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-
78-27, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§439-14) 

§16-78-28 Examination. (a) No license shall be 
issued to any person unless the person takes and 
passes the examination as prescribed by the board for 
the license applied for. Failure to obtain a passing 
score shall result in failure of the examination as a 
whole. 

(b) The examination shall be given only on 
established dates and at designated locations in the 
State. Exceptions to established dates shall be made 
for the benefit of candidates who for religious 
reasons may not sit on scheduled examination dates. 
Conditions and procedures for admittance to this 
special date shall be determined by the board and 
testing service. 

(c) Examinations shall be conducted in 
accordance with procedures formulated by the testing 
service authorized by the board to administer 
examinations. Failure to follow such procedures shall 
result in immediate disqualification from the 
examination and may bar applicants from being examined 
in any future examinations. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 
§16-78-28, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp HRS 
§439-14) 

78-14 



 

       
           

        
  

         
            

       
       

       
           

         
        
         
        

                       
     

 
 
 
         

        
          
        

                      
       

 
 
 
        

        
        

         
                      

        
 
 
 
        
 

§16-78-29 Reexamination. (a) An applicant who 
fails to attain a passing score in any part of the 
examination shall be required to repeat the entire 
examination. 

(b) Should an applicant fail to get a passing 
score by the end of the second year from the date of 
qualifying for the first examination, the applicant 
shall file an application for re-examination. 

(c) An applicant who registers for examination 
but fails to sit for the examination is a no show 
applicant and forfeits the examination fee. The no 
show applicant shall register and pay examination fee 
for any subsequent examination. [Eff 7/4/64; am and 
ren §16-78-29, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-30 Language. All examinations shall be 
conducted in the English language and no applicant 
shall be permitted the use of an interpreter. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-30, 7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; 
comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-31 Supplies and equipment. Each 
applicant shall be required to provide their own 
supplies, and equipment for the examination. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-31, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-32 Repealed. [R 12/21/89] 

78-15 



 

 

  
 
 
 
         

        
        

     
         

     
         

   
         

       
      

     
       
     
     

   
         

       
       
          

  
     

      
       
       
        
   

      
     

      
     

       
        

        

SUBCHAPTER 5 

EXEMPTIONS AND EXCEPTIONS 

§16-78-36 Exemptions. The rules governing the 
practice of cosmetology shall not apply to the 
following persons when acting within the scope of 
their profession or occupation: 

(1) Persons authorized by law of this State to 
practice medicine and surgery; 

(2) Persons authorized by law of this State to 
practice barbering; 

(3) An officer or employee of the United States, 
if the practice is performed by the 
employees within the federal property; 

(4) Manufacturer's representatives or sales 
persons in retail outlets who sell beauty 
products or techniques for promotional 
purposes without compensation for the 
cosmetology services; 

(5) Persons who are employed by a firm or 
corporation dealing as a beauty operator for 
the sole purpose of giving demonstrations on 
the use of the products on one's self or a 
model; 

(6) Educational activities conducted in 
connection with any monthly, annual, or 
other special program from which the general 
public is excluded. This exemption shall 
apply only to the specific days of the 
special program; 

(7) Persons employed by theatrical groups, 
modeling agencies or photography studios 
without being directly compensated by the 
client being serviced; or 

(8) Persons employed by health care facilities 
who are providing care to patients. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-36, 7/2/81; am and 

78-16 



 

    
     

 

 
        

         
          
        

        
   
         

   
        

      
        

      
        

       
        
  

     
      

       
       
        
    

        
     
       
       

       
                     

       
 
 
 
 

   

    

comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 
] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: 

HRS §439-2) 

§16-78-37 Exceptions. The practice of 
cosmetology shall be carried on only by persons duly 
licensed to practice in this State and only in a 
licensed beauty shop, except as provided in this 
subsection. A duly licensed beauty operator may 
practice cosmetology: 

(1) Upon patients or residents in a hospital or 
nursing home; 

(2) Upon inmates or residents of institutions of 
mental health or correctional institutions; 

(3) Upon an invalid or handicapped person in 
that person's place of residence; 

(4) Upon a person at a charitable event, 
provided this exception shall apply only to 
the specific event on the specific day or 
days; 

(5) Educational activities conducted in 
connection with any monthly, annual, or 
other special program from which the general 
public is excluded. This exception shall 
apply only to the specific days of the 
special program; and 

(6) As an employee of a theatrical group, 
modeling agency or photography studio, 
provided the client does not compensate the 
licensee. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-
37, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

SUBCHAPTER 6 

BEAUTY SHOP REQUIREMENTS 

78-17 



 

         
         

         
           
        

        
                       

     
 
 
 
           

         
       

         
                     

        
 
 
 
            

         
        

           
  

 
     

 
           

     
 

        
         

           
         

            
        

                         
  

§16-78-41 Compliance with other laws. The board 
may accept a signed statement from the department of 
health that the shop for which the certificate is 
sought is or will be in full compliance with all State 
public health and safety requirements. [Eff 7/4/64; 
am and ren §16-78-41, 7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-42 Shop. A fee shall be charged for 
relocation under the same name and ownership. License 
certificates are nontransferable. [Eff 7/4/64; am 
12/27/66; am and ren §16-78-42, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-43 Price list. (a) No beauty shop shall 
perform any work upon the public unless there is 
displayed in a conspicuous place, both reception room 
and work room, one or more signs which shall read as 
follows: 

"PRICE LIST AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST" 

This sign shall be printed in letters of not less than 
three-fourths inch in size. 

(b) Every shop shall have a price list 
available. The price of each and every service 
offered and the price of each and every product to be 
used in connection with the services shall be plainly 
set forth on a price list. [Eff 12/27/66; am and ren 
§16-78-43, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

78-18 



 

       
       

      
        
         

         
                         

  
 
 
 
          
          
        

       
                      

        
 
 
 

   

    
 
 
 
          

        
        

      
          

           
         

       
                         

   
 
 
 

§16-78-44 Employment of apprentices. Shops 
employing apprentices shall comply with the board's 
apprenticeship manual and apprenticeship curriculum. 
Failure to comply may be cause for disciplinary 
action. [Eff 12/17/66; am 4/17/70; am and ren §16-78-
44, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

§16-78-45 Employment of barbers. A barber with 
a valid and current license shall be permitted to work 
in a beauty shop without meeting any additional 
cosmetology licensing requirements. [Eff and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-1) 

SUBCHAPTER 7 

BEAUTY SCHOOL REQUIREMENTS 

§16-78-48 Schools. No license for a beauty 
school shall be issued unless the applicant presents 
evidence to the board that the applicant has 
satisfactory school facilities, equipment, meets all 
of the requirements of the board, and is qualified to 
offer a course of study as provided by the board. 
[Eff 7/4/64; am 4/17/70; am and ren §16-78-48, 7/2/81; 
am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§438-5, 439-18) (Imp: 
HRS §439-18) 

78-19 



 

       
        

     
      

      
        
  

       
   

       
      

   
       

       
     

        
  

         
       
  

         
     

        
  

         
   

        
        
   

      
           

        
      

       
      

        
      

       
       

         
       

§16-78-49 Application. Each applicant for 
certificate of registration to conduct a school shall 
submit the following to the board: 

(1) A complete statement of the applicant's 
training and experience in order to 
establish his fitness to conduct a school as 
proposed; 

(2) A bank reference of the applicant's 
financial standing; 

(3) Certificate of clearance from the county 
building department and from the department 
of health; 

(4) Concise floor plan, giving measurements of 
all spaces and total space and showing 
placement of all equipment; 

(5) A copy of student contract and enrollment 
forms; 

(6) Copy of school catalog or brochure and all 
documents proposed to be used in recruiting 
students; 

(7) A statement of the method and content of 
advertising to be used; 

(8) Copy of diploma or certificate to be 
awarded; 

(9) Schedule of all fees, tuition and charges to 
be made; 

(10) Name and certificate of principal in charge 
of school and name and certificate number of 
all instructors; 

(11) Copy of school rules; 
(12) A surety or cash bond in the sum of $10,000 

payable and in a form satisfactory to the 
board. The condition contained therein 
shall be that the school shall provide 
indemnification to any student who suffers 
loss as a result of the school not 
fulfilling its obligations under the terms 
of its certificate of registration. The 
bonding requirement may be reduced at the 
discretion of the board by a showing of the 
school that the requirement is excessive and 

78-20 



 

       
       

       
        

       
      

         
   

 
 
 
          

         
       

                         
  

 
 
 
          

         
      

         
                      

        
 
 
 

          
          

         
        

                         
  

 
 
 
        

        
         

           
        

that at no time advance collections from 
students amount to as much as $10,000; and 

(13) An itemized list of all materials that 
constitute a student's kit. [Eff 7/4/64; am 
4/17/70; am and ren §16-78-49, 7/2/81; am 
and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: 
HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-50 License. Licenses to operate a beauty 
school are nontransferable. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 
§16-78-50, 7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

§16-78-51 Courses of study. Courses of study 
shall be in accordance with the board's beauty school 
curriculum and instructor-trainee curriculum. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-51, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §439-18) 

§16-78-52 Law and rules. State law and rules 
adopted by the [State] state board shall be taught in 
all classes. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-52, 
7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; am and comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

§16-78-53 Principal. The principal shall 
provide the name and certificate number of all 
instructors and be in charge of and responsible for 
the operation of the school. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 
§16-78-53, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; 

78-21 



 

        

       
        

         
        

        
         

        
                         

  
 
 
 
        

       
    

       
     

       
   

     
        

  
      

     
      

      
       

       
         

   
 
 
 
          

         
          

         

comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

§16-78-54 Instructor-student ratio. The 
instructor student ratio shall be one instructor for 
every twenty-five students. A school shall have a 
minimum of two licensed instructors, which may include 
the principal, provided the principal is a licensed 
instructor. [Eff 7/4/64; am 4/17/70; am and ren §16-
78-54, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

§16-78-55 Instructor-trainee. The beauty school 
shall assure the instructor-trainee is in compliance 
with the following: 

(1) Training shall be under direct supervision 
of a licensed instructor; 

(2) Training shall comply with the board's 
instructor-trainee curriculum; 

(3) Instructor-trainee shall not practice 
cosmetology at the beauty school as a beauty 
operator; 

(4) Instructor-trainee shall be furnished with 
an instructor manual; and 

(5) Instructor-trainee shall be identified with 
a name tag stating "Instructor-trainee." 
[Eff 7/4/64; am and ren §16-78-55, 7/2/81; 
am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: 
HRS §439-18) 

§16-78-56 Bond. The surety or cash bond 
required to be furnished by any school shall be 
continuous in form and remain in full force and effect 
and shall run concurrently with the license period and 

78-22 



 

       
        

       
          

          
        

       
         

           
         
                      

        
 
 
 
          

            
         
        

       
      
         

       
                         

   
 
 
          

        
     

     
    
      

    
     
        

  
       

        
      
    

for any renewals thereof, unless terminated or 
cancelled by the surety. Such termination or 
cancellation shall not be effective, however, unless 
notice thereof is delivered by the surety to the board 
at least sixty days prior to date of termination or 
cancellation. The certificate of registration of any 
licensee shall be suspended upon termination or 
cancellation of the bond, unless prior thereto a new 
bond has been filed with the board. [Eff 7/4/64; am 
4/14/70; am and ren §16-78-56, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-57 School facilities. The room or rooms 
where work is done on customers shall not be used as a 
class or lecture room when customers are present. 
There shall be adequate facilities for classroom use, 
appropriately equipped. There shall also be 
sufficient lockers available for students' private 
property. [Eff 7/4/64; am 9/9/66; am and ren §16-78-
57, 7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§§438-5, 439-18) 

§16-78-58 Equipment. (a) The school shall 
maintain at least the following minimum equipment for 
each twenty-five students enrolled: 

(1) Three shampoo bowls; 
(2) Three dryers; 
(3) Sufficient reclining chairs for facials 

(punees are acceptable); 
(4) Three manicure tables; 
(5) One chair and dresserette station for each 

student; 
(6) Mannequin for each student with first 

quality hair for use in practicing the art 
of cosmetology (mannequins shall be placed 
on firm stands); 

78-23 



 

     
     

 
     

    
        
        
       

         
         
                      

         
 
 
 
          

         
         

         
        

         
         

  
        

            
        

          
        
                       

       
 
 
 
         

        
          

            
         
                      

       
 
 

(7) Wet sterilizers (sufficiently large to 
accommodate the instruments used by twenty-
five students); 

(8) Electrical appliances for the proper 
training of beauty culture; and 

(9) X-ray equipment shall not be used. 
(b) The requirement of subsection (a) shall be 

standard beauty equipment and maintained in good 
working condition. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 7.11; 
9/9/66; am and ren §16-78-58, 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §§438-5, 439-18) 

§16-78-59 Enrollment. (a) The number of 
students shall be small enough to permit an effective 
educational program. The number of students shall be 
set so that the total of students, patrons, and 
faculty does not exceed the occupancy requirements of 
the [State] state board of health and the building 
department of the county in which the school is 
located. 

(b) A beauty school shall enroll only students 
who are at least sixteen years of age and who have an 
education equivalent to the completion of high school 
or grade twelve. [Eff 9/9/66; am and ren §16-78-59, 
7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; am 
9/26/15; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-60 School hours. The program of 
instruction for any instructor or student shall not 
exceed forty hours per week nor more than eight hours 
in any one day. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 7.13; 9/9/66; 
am and ren §16-78-60, 7/2/81; am and comp 12/21/89; 
comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-
5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

78-24 



 

        
          

        
           

       
                       

     
 
 
 
         

        
  

        
      

  
      

       
       

     
      

        
     

        
       

       
         

   
 
 
 
          

        
          

         
                      
          

 
 
 

§16-78-61 Students. Students who resume their 
beauty culture courses after a lapse of three years or 
more shall not receive credit hours for previous 
course work. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 7.14; 9/9/66; am 
and ren §16-78-61, 7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; comp 
2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: HRS §438-5) 
(Imp: HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-62 Instructors. The beauty school shall 
assure the instructors are in compliance with the 
following: 

(1) Instructors shall be in attendance at all 
times when students are working upon 
customers; 

(2) Instructors shall not practice cosmetology 
at the school as operators; and 

(3) Instructors shall teach only in the 
certification category in which the 
instructor holds a beauty operator license 
and shall be identified with a name stating 
"instructor" and the appropriate beauty 
operator category. [Eff 7/4/64; am and ren 
7.15; 9/9/66; am and ren §16-78-62, 7/2/81; 
am and comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: 
HRS §438-5) 

§16-78-63 Library. Each school shall maintain a 
reasonably adequate library of books relating to the 
science and art of beauty culture. [Eff 7/4/64; am 
and ren 7.16; 9/9/66; am and ren §16-78-63, 7/2/81; 
comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS §438-5) 

78-25 



 

       
          
         

          
          
         

        
         
        
          
      

                         
  

 
 
 

   

   
 
 
 
           

          
        

     
       

       
      
         
       

        
      

         
   

         
        

     
    

       
      

§16-78-64 Signs. No school shall perform any 
work upon or for members of the general public unless 
there is displayed in a conspicuous place in both 
reception room and work room one or more signs no 
smaller than 18" x 24" which shall read as follows: 
"School of Beauty Culture Work done by students under 
supervision." No school shall advertise or hold 
itself out as doing professional work, or in any 
manner guaranteeing the work of students. [Eff 
7/4/64; am and ren 7.17; 9/9/66; am and ren §16-78-64, 
7/2/81; comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §438-5) (Imp: HRS 
§438-5) 

SUBCHAPTER 8 

ORAL TESTIMONY 

§16-78-68 Oral testimony. (a) The board shall 
accept oral testimony on any item which is on the 
agenda, provided that the testimony shall be subject 
to the following conditions: 

(1) Each person seeking to present oral 
testimony shall notify the board not later 
than forty-eight hours before the meeting, 
and at that time shall state the item on 
which testimony is to be presented; 

(2) The board may request that any person 
providing oral testimony submit the remarks, 
or a summary of the remarks, in writing to 
the board; 

(3) The board may rearrange the items on the 
agenda for the purpose of providing for the 
most efficient and convenient presentation 
of oral testimony; 

(4) Persons presenting oral testimony at the 
beginning of the testimony shall identify 

78-26 



 

      
  

        
        

        
      
       

         
         

      
        

   
        

         
          

        
       
     

        
       

         
        
         

         
                      

          
 
 
 

   

    

       
        
          

        
       

           

themselves and the organization, if any, 
that they represent; 

(5) The board may limit oral testimony to a 
specified time period but in no case shall 
the period be less than five minutes, and 
the person testifying shall be informed 
prior to the commencement of the testimony 
of the time constraints to be imposed; and 

(6) The board may refuse to hear any testimony 
which is irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly 
repetitious to the agenda item on which it 
is presented. 

(b) Nothing in this section shall require the 
board to hear or receive any oral or documentary 
evidence from a person on any matter which is the 
subject of another proceeding pending subject to the 
hearings relief, declaratory relief, or rule relief 
provisions of chapter 16-201. 

(c) Nothing in this section shall prevent the 
board from soliciting oral remarks from persons 
present at the meeting or from inviting persons to 
make presentations to the board on any particular 
matter on the board's agenda. [Eff 11/7/64; am 
12/28/69; am and ren §16-78-68 7/2/81; am and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §§438-5, 92-3) (Imp: HRS §§438-5, 92-3) 

SUBCHAPTER 9 

PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE 

§16-78-72 Administrative practice and procedure. 
The rules of practice and procedures for cosmetology 
shall be as provided in chapter 16-201, the rules of 
practice and procedure of the department of commerce 
and consumer affairs, which are incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this chapter. [Eff and 

78-27 



 

     
       

   

  
 
 
 
        

       
       
       
     
   

       
      
         

       
          
                       

      
 
 
 

       
          
    

 
 

        
        

   
 
 

       
       

          
   

 

comp 12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §91-2) (Imp: HRS §91-2) 

[SUBCHAPTER 10 

MEDICAL CLEARANCE 

§16-78-76 Medical clearance. Upon the 
department of health declaring an emergency or 
epidemic concerning one or more contagious or 
infectious disease or diseases, all licensed beauty 
operators, licensed instructors, beauty operator 
applicants, instructor applicants, instructor-
trainees, students, and apprentices shall provide a 
medical clearance certificate from a physician 
attesting that the licensee or applicant is free from 
that particular contagious or infectious disease or 
diseases, as the case may be.]” [Eff and comp 
12/21/89; comp 2/22/05; R ] (Auth: HRS 
§439-7) (Imp: HRS §439-12.5) 

2. Material, except source notes and other 
notes, to be repealed is bracketed and stricken. New 
material is underscored. 

3. Additions to update source notes and other 
notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are 
not underscored. 

4. These amendments to and compilation of 
chapter 16-78, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take 
effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
Lieutenant Governor. 

78-28 



         
         

      
         

        

 
    
    
  

    

 
   

_______________

___________________________ 

____________ 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the 
rules drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the 
requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, which were adopted on November 30, 2021 and 
filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

CATHERINE P. AWAKUNI COLÓN 
Director of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Deputy Attorney General 

78-29 







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IV. Administrative Matters 
A. Update on the Status of the Board’s 

Proposed Phase II Website Project 

No attachments 



 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

IV. Administrative Matters 
B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy 

Activities and Programs in accordance with 
the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, 
HRS 

No Attachments 



   
   

 
   

 

V. Legislative Matters 
A.Discussion and Action on Governor’s 

Message 726, Submitting for Consideration 
and Confirmation for the Gubernatorial 
Nomination of Mr. Sanford Morioka to the 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
for a term to expire June 30, 2023 



       

           
         

     

 

 

  

                   

               

GM726 
Measure Title: Submitting for consideration and confirmation to the Small Business Regulatory Review 

Board, Gubernatorial Nominee, SANFORD MORIOKA, for a term to expire 06-30-2023. 
Report Title: Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

Description: 
Companion: 
Package: 
Current Referral: EET 

Introducer(s): 

Sort by Date Status Text 

3/3/2022 S Received. 

3/3/2022 S Referred to EET. 

S = Senate | H = House | D = Data Systems | $ = Appropriation measure | ConAm = Constitutional 
Amendment 
Some of the above items require Adobe Acrobat Reader. Please visit Adobe's download page for detailed 
instructions. 

GM726 

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolderCol1$LinkButtonMeasure','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolderCol1$GridViewStatus','Sort$sortorder')
https://get.adobe.com/reader


60V. MSG. N0. 72w 

EXECUTIVE CHAMBERS 
HONOLULU 

DAVID Y. IGE 
GOVERNOR 

February 28, 2022 

The Honorable Ronald Kouchi, President,
And Members of the Senate 

Thirty-First State Legislature
Hawai‘i State Capitol, Room 409 
Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 

Dear Senate President Kouchi and Members of the Senate: 

In accordance with the provisions of Article V, Section 6 of the Hawai‘i State 
Constitution, I have the honor to submit herewith for your consideration and 
confirmation, the following nomination: 

Sanford Morioka 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

Expiration Date: 6/30/2023 

Sincerely, 

DAVID 
Governor, State of Hawai‘i 



   
 

 

 
 

           
     

    
                   
   

   
         

           
  

 
   
               

          
                
           
          

             
    

 
                                      
                                  

                             
 

                 
    
      
        
            
  

 
       

            
             
               

 
       

             
             
                 

Sanford Morioka 

COMPANY: Edward Enterprises, Inc. 
TITLE: President 
ADDRESS: 

Physical: 240 Puuhale Road #101 Honolulu, HI 96819 

EDUCATION BACKGROUND: 
Graduate of Iolani School 
BBA from University of Portland 

‐ Marketing/Magagement 

WORK HISTORY: 
Wallace Computer Services, Inc – 1989 – 2000 

‐ Portland, OR – Account Executive 
‐ Seattle, WA – Sr. Account Executive, Major Accounts 

K/P Corporation – 2000 – 2002 
‐ Seattle WA – Account Executive 

Edward Enterprises, Inc. – 2002 – Present 
‐ Honolulu, HI 

I’ve been in the Printing Industry for 32 years. I Spent 17 years in the Pacific Northwest – 4 
years in college at the University of Portland, 13 years in the printing industry. I returned back 
to Hawaii in 2002, and have spent the last 19 years with Edward Enterprises. 

With Edward Enterprises, I have held the following positions: 
‐ Account Executive 
‐ Business Development Manager 
‐ Vice President, Business Development 
‐ Sr Vice President, Chief Sales Officer 
‐ President 

PREVIOUS SERVICE ON BOARDS/COMMITTEES: 
U/H Shidler Alumni Board of Directors 
Hawaii Food Manufacturer’s Association – Marketing Committee 
Postal Customer Council Hawaii – Board of Directors 

CURRENT SERVICE ON BOARDS: 
Edward Enterprises, Inc – Board of Directors 
Palama Settlement – Executive Board of Directors 
Honolulu Japanese Chamber of Commerce – Board of Directors 

AriolaJK
Received


	A.   Discussion and Action on Proposed   Amendments and the Small Business  Statement After Public Hearing for HAR  Title 16 Chapter 73, Barbers, promulgated  by DCCA
	B.  Discussion and Action on Proposed    Amendments and the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing for HAR Title 16 Chapter 78, Cosmetology, promulgated by DCCA
	A. Update on the Status of the Board’s Proposed Phase II Website Project
	B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS
	A. Discussion and Action on Governor’s Message 726, Submitting for Consideration and Confirmation for the Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Sanford Morioka to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board to expire June 30, 2023
	ADPE985.tmp
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of February 17, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	Old Business – After Public Hearing
	IV. Administrative Matters
	A. Update on the Status of the Board’s Proposed Phase II Website Project
	B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Administrative Rules 

	V. Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.
	VI. Adjournment

	ADPAAA3.tmp
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of February 17, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	Old Business – After Public Hearing
	IV. Administrative Matters
	A. Update on the Status of the Board’s Proposed Phase II Website Project
	B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Administrative Rules 

	V. Legislative Matters
	A. Discussion and Action on Governor’s Message 726, Submitting for Consideration and Confirmation for the Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Sanford Morioka to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board to expire June 30, 2023

	VI. Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.
	VII. Adjournment

	ADP32AE.tmp
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of February 17, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	Old Business – After Public Hearing
	IV. Administrative Matters
	A. Update on the Status of the Board’s Proposed Phase II Website Project
	B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Administrative Rules 

	V. Legislative Matters
	A. Discussion and Action on Governor’s Message 726, Submitting for Consideration and Confirmation for the Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Sanford Morioka to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2023

	VI. Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.
	VII. Adjournment




